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\.Mclntosh Inn at Indian Springs, built c.1823, is one of a very few
extant structures that represent 19th century Creek Indian life in Georgia.

McIntosh Inn, as it stands today across from Indian Springs State Park,
is an irregularly spaced seven bay, pitched roof structure with a square
columned shed porch that extends across the front and on part of one side.
Three entrances are found on the front facade. These pilaster framed doors
have the "Cross and Bible": design and a high, but simple entablature. On
the pilasters are vertical beading and a diamond design. All sash windows
on the front facade have twelve-over-twelve lights. A long one-story shed
addition extends across the rear of the structure. A fieldstone basement
area consists of a small room said to have housed Indian prisoners. Seven
fireplaces feed into three chimneys in the main portion of the house and at
least three others connect to two smaller chimneys in the shed rear portion.

Structurally the house appears to have originally been just the two
story section; the shed rear addition and the one and one-half story side
addition were probably added only a short time after the main portion becausq
window sash and interior details are of the same general period as the two
story section. The front porch, according to a pre-1913 photograph, is a
two story one with thin, square columns. Apparently at sometime during the
early twentieth century this porch was removed and the present one-story,
square columned one was added.

The plan consists of a series of rooms on either side of a hallway that
runs lengthwise the structure. Both floors follow this pattern only generall
as rooms appear to have been planned with little attention to symmetry.
However, details such as mantels and wainscotting show a knowledge of the
federal period. 1In two rooms, simple versions of Adeggsque mantels occur.
These have side, three part panelled friezes with square and beaded pilasters
supporting the shelf. 1In other rooms there are mantels with flat friezes
and corniced shelves supported by beaded, almost flush, pilasters. Wainscott
ing occurs in various forms on the first floor. The "office room" on the
side porch and the entrance hall with its simple, square post stairs, have a
narrow chair rail with a white-washed wall area above, thus creating the
feeling of a wainscotting below. In the two rooms to the left of the en-

trance hall is found a simple form of a panelled wainscotting with a horizon+

tal beaded area between the chair rail and the panelling.
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8. Significance

of early Indian-white settlement structures in unceded lands. Although obvious
porch and room proportion changes have been made, the integrity of the interior
details reveal features of "wilderness" sophistication as noted in the simple
versions of Adam mantels, horizontal beaded wainscotting, and panelled, beaded
doorways.

Indian Springs, where this treaty was signed and where McIntosh is located,
has long been considered more than just healthful springs. The Indian believed
it to be holy and associated with the beneficies of the Good Spirit. McIntosh
Inn, high on a wooded hill overlooks these brownish, sulphus springs. After
McIntosh's death the house passed into the hands of two men listed simply as
Chief Matthews and Chief Dallas. 1In 1850 it became the property of the Varner
family and remained in their possession until 1953, with the exception of a
short while when the DAR was given ownership. (Apparently the upkeep became a
problem for the DAR and the property reverted to the Varner family.) While
known as the Varner House, the 35-room building became a famous resort hotel.
Before and after the Civil War, Indian Springs became one of the most famous
health resorts in the South. In addition to the Varner House, there flourished
at Indian Springs the picturesque old Wigwam Hotel, which before it burned in
1921, was said to be the largest wooden hotel in the world. Adjacent to the
inn property is Indian Springs State Park, the oldest state park in Georgia.

In 1953, J. H. Elliot of Atlanta bought the Varner House, added a collec-
tion of artifacts and furnishings and opened it to the public for a fee. Over
the years McIntosh Inn has been increasingly neglected, but presently this Cree]
Indian site, of which there are so few, has been proposed for acquisition by
the Georgia Heritage Trust, a State program set up by Gov. Carter in 1972 for
the preservation of outstanding recreational, historical and natural sites.
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he. Varner House, or McIntosh Inn, built c. 1823, is primarily signifi-
cant as the tavern-inn of William McIntosh, a half«breed Scot =Indian, who
was the cousin of Georgia's.Governor George M. Troup, and also the chief of
the Coweta's,one of the leading subtribal groups within the Creek nation.
McIntosh Inn, an elongated frame structure built with numerous rooms for
lodging guests, served as a tavern and inn on Indian lands before the area
was .ceded by an 1825 treaty of Indian Springs.WRIt was here, at McIntosh

Inn, that McIntosh along with several other tribal chiefs signed this treatyj

however, as a result of McIntosh's leadership role in signing the treaty
without full consent of the entire Creek nation, he was later executed.

William McIntosh (c.l1778- May 1, 1825) was born of a full-blooded Creek
woman and a captain of the British Army, William McIntosh, whose first
cousin was George M. Troup, Governor of Georgia, 1823-7. As a reward for
notable service in the War of 1812, McIntosh was commissioned brigadier-

|general in the United States Army, and served with Jackson in the campaigns

against the Seminoles. After the Indian wars, McIntosh was known as the
friend of the white man and of Georgia. Troup became governor in 1823 and
endeavored to secure the removal of the Creek and Cherokee Indians still
occupying choice lands in the western part of the state. The Upper Creeks,
long hostile to the whites, were determined to make no cession of tribal
lands, The Lower Creeks, influenced by McIntosh, were disposed to conclude
treaties of cession. A council was arranged at Indian Springs in February
1825, where McIntosh signed a treaty of cession; as a result of McIntosh's

selling lands without full consent of the Indian nation, he was executed by
the Upper Creeks at his other house.

In 1800 William McIntosh built a cabin at Indian Springs which he and
his two wives and children used as a winter home. A fire destroyed this
house and as a result McIntosh and Joel Bailey built what is now known as
McIntosh Inn. It is said that McIntosh's slaves brought bricks from Savann
and McIntosh carved woodwork on the doorsand mantels. The validity of the
allegation of McIntosh's craftsmanship is not certain; but according to oral
tradition McIntosh in 1805 had made a trip to visit Washington at Mt. Vernon
He brought back the seedling pecan trees, now in the yard. It has also been
said that McIntosh Inn was built with reference to Mt., Vernon. Whatever the
case, it is known that McIntosh was a wealthy, sophisticated man. McIntosh
owned a large house on the west side of the Chattahoochee along with several
thousand head of stock and 72 slaves., McIntosh Inn is, however, exemplary

(continued)
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_ United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet Historic Name: Indian Springs Hotel
Common Name: McIntosh Inn

Section number _1_____  Page
Butts County, GA.

Please change the historic name for the property currently
listed in the National Register as "McIntosh Inn'" in Butts
County, Georgia to be that of "Indian Springs Hotel."

This change is due to a technical error when the nomination
was first proposed. Subsequent research conducted by this
department produced a research report by Martha F. Norwood
entitled The Indian Springs Hotel (1978) covering the 19th
century history of this property as it was operated under
the name which should be the historic name for the property.
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Ellza th A. Lyon
Deputy State Hlstorlc Preservation Officer

August 7, 1987



